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February 15, 2001

CHAIR CARROLL: Human Services and Economic Development Committee will come
to order. . .. (gavel) ...
Good morning, members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
CHAIR CARROLL:
We have with us this morning Committee members
Jo Anne Johnson, Riki Hokama, Pat Kawano and Mike Molina. Deputy ... ,
Deputy Corporation Counsel is not here yet. Brian will join us shortly, I believe.
And we have Kal Kobayashi, our County Engineer [Energy] Coordinator.
Public testimony will be accepted for each item on the agenda, and we only have
one item today. Those wishing to testify should sign up at the secretary's desk.
Testimony shall be limited to three minutes. An additional minute to conclude
testimony may be granted subject to discretion of the Committee Chair. If
testimony is incomplete, an additional three minutes will be given after all others
have been heard. Testifiers are requested to state their name for the record and
indicate who they're representing. To minimize disturbances during the meeting,
please turn off all pagers and cellular phones or set them in a silent mode.
Members, today we have one item on our agenda, HSED-18, Hawaii Model
Energy Code. This item relates to energy saving recommendations that have
been formulated by the State Department of Business, Economic Development
and Tourist Energy Division.
We're fortunate to have with us today, Mr. Howard Wiig, an Institutional Energy
Analyst with DBEDT's Energy Division.
In a few moments I'll ask him to go ahead and overview of the Hawaii Model
Energy Code.
One possible action that could occur today would be to recommend that the
proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MAUl
COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO THE UNIFORM BUILDING CODE" be
passed on first reading and ordered to print. The proposed bill would incorporate
Hawaii Model Energy Code in the Uniform Building Code.
Do we have anybody for testimony?
MS. ALUETA: Mr. Chair, no one has signed up to testify this morning.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Having nobody to give testimony at this time, I'd like to ask to
Mr. Wiig to provide an overview. We're giving him 15 minutes for the energy
code.
ITEM NO. 18: HAWAII MODEL ENERGY CODE

(c.c. No. 99-296)

NOTE: Pause while Mr. Wiig approaches the podium.
MR. WIIG: Thank you, Chair Carroll and members of the Committee. Thank you so
much for bringing this up. This is a moment that we in DBEDT have been waiting
for, for many, many, many years.
When Dr. Seiji Naya, the Director of the department reviewed our testimony, he
wrote on the buck slip 'Thank you, Howard!", exclamation mark. So, again, we
really appreciate being here .
... To begin with, the Model Energy Code is mandated ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO:
gentleman's name?

Excuse me, Mr. Chairman, can we have the

MR. WIIG: Oh, I thought I've been introduced.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry...
MR. WIIG: ... Excuse me.
CHAIR CARROLL: .. .introduce yourself, please.
MR. WIIG: Yeah. Howard Wiig, Energy Analyst, Department of Business and
Economic Development.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you.
MR. WIIG: Apologize for that oversight. ... The energy code is mandated by federal law.
The Energy Policy Act of 1992 required that all states adopt the Model Energy
Code for commercial buildings by October '94. The State passed a law to that
effect in 1993. The Big Island did adopt such a code in early '95. They were few
months behind schedule. Oahu adopted in the summer of '95 and Kauai in
late '95.
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So this is year six for the Model Energy Code for all other counties. The savings
to those counties accruing as a result of the code have been approximately
$21 million. So we're talking about a substantial amount of moneys, substantial
savings for everyone concerned here.
Just very briefly, the purpose of the code is to eliminate inefficient equipment,
and you measure efficiency by the amount of energy coming into a system and
the amount of productivity going out of a system. If you're driving from here to
Hana and you chose a 1993 Cadillac running on four cylinders, it would consume
x-number of gallons. If you did that same trip in a brand new Honda, it would
consume maybe one-fourth, one-fifth that no ... , amount of gasoline. The
Honda's obviously more efficient.
The easiest way to illustrate efficiency, I think, is with our standard table lamp
... (inaudible while Mr. Wiig turned on table lamp for demonstration) ... out of here
for you. Just a second. This is an incandescent lamp and it's ... , was made in the
year 2000. This is an incandescent lamp ... (showing older lamp bulb) ... made in
the year 1907-not much different from what Thomas Edison invented just a few
years prior to that. This and that ... (showing comparison) ... are not very far apart
at all. If we had looked in ... , at similar advances in airplane technology, the
airplanes of today would be something like the World War I, uh, flying aces that
Snoopy used to drive around. This ... (showing lamp) ... is the state-of-the-art
screw-in lamp. This is called the compact fluorescent and it consumes about
one-fourth as much electricity as does that lamp ., .(pointing to another lamp) .. .
for putting out the same amount of light. This ... (pointing to yet another lamp) .. .
is the next generation of that. The disadvantage of these lamps was that in
fixtures like that, they would stick out and not look very attractive. These
... (showing lamp with a curl on top) ... have what we call, scientifically, the "Dairy
Queen". They're all in a curl so that they're much more compact and they can fit
into fixtures like that-much more adaptable for a lot of different purposes.
Why haven't people chosen the compact fluorescent lamp over the incandescent
lamp? Because designers, builders, and so forth, understand lowest first cost.
The .. , that lamp would cost about 35 cents, wholesale. The compact fluorescent,
about $12, wholesale. So you're saving around the $12 initially. And that has
what..., is what has been driving the industry for years and years and years. But,
if we ask ourselves the question, what happens over ten thousand hours? If
we're burning this 100 watt lamp for ten thousand hours, we're consuming a
million watt hours which translates into one thousand kilowatt hours. What is the
typical cost for a kilowatt hour on Maui now? ... (pause) ... I would guess, 15 - 16
cents. Call it, uh, call it, was 15 cents a good estimate? Let's call it 15 cents.
Um, thousand kilowatt hours-somebody supposed to be interrupting me right
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about now. I give a lot of classes and, I guess, everybody has nerves of steel,
nobody wants to interrupt me yet. I'll interrupt myself, then, before you get
nervous. ... (pause )...
There's a burn mark there ... (holding a white sock to a lamp that is beginning to
burn) ... and if I left it on there for awhile more, there would be flames coming out.
We don't want to have the fire alarm go off. Um, just to interrupt my testimonywhat does this burn mark indicate? Heat. This is called an incandescent lamp.
Does anybody know what the Latin word for fire is?
. This is ... (holding up
lamp) ... a fire lamp. It is very, very hot. There are three reasons why we have to
air condition our buildings in Hawaii. Number one, is our 98.6 body heat that we
emanate. Number two, is the solar radiation coming through windows and walls
that we have to eliminate. Number three, is the equipment within a building-the
coffeemakers, the computers, and most of all, the lighting systems. As you can
see, this produces a lot of heat. If you're ... , light your building with this, you have
hundreds and hundreds of these in a building, your air conditioner is really going
to have to work hard.
This ... (holding up a lamp) ... burns so coolly that you could literally on the cold
nights what we've been having lately, take one of these to bed with you lit and
cup your hands around it and it would just keep your hands warm. What
implications does that have for the air conditioning system. Quite apart from the
fact that this ... (holding up lamps to demonstrate) ... consumes 23 watts, that
consumes 100 watts The air conditioner has a lot less work to do when you
specify efficient lighting. But, I was interrupted from my economics there-one
thousand kilowatt hours is consumed by burning this for ten thousand hours. At
15 cents a kilowatt hour, that's approximately a $150 energy cost versus about
one-third of that or $37.50, one ... , one-fourth of that, excuse me, $30.50; $37.50
for the compact fluorescent-a savings of what $112 or so. But, the compact
fluorescent burns for ten thousand hours.
This ... (holding up lamps to
demonstrate)... burns for seven hundred fifty hours. Therefore, over a
ten-thousand-hour period, you're going to have to replace this thirteen times as
an additional cost.
In a commercial building, who replaces those lamps? The custodian. He doesn't
shut off his salary meter when he does that. Estimated cost of replacement for a
lamp is about $2 per lamp, custodial cost. So, now, we're adding $2 x's thirteen
replacements. There goes some more money. You can see the economics here
and that leads me to my next point.
Every provision of the Model Energy Code is based on solid economics like this.
There's nothing that has what's called the "high payback period".
Air
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conditioning-as I just kind of covered the lighting section-air conditioning, we
simply specify high "EER". That stands for energy efficiency ratio equipment.
That's equivalent to miles per gallon. There are pieces of equipment out there
that have EERs of only six or seven. We specify EERs of ten, eleven, twelve.
That's like specifying, uh, a car that gets 30 miles to the gallon, something like
that. A little extra cost, but as you can see by this illustration, it pays for itself
very, very quickly.
The Building Envelope-the "skin" around the building. The code requires R-19.
"R" stands for resistance to heat penetration in this case-R-19 in the roofs, R-11
in the walls and then a U-factor of .4 in the windows. U-factor refers to the
emissivity of heat penetrating through the windows. ... A clear pane of glass has
a U-factor of one, meaning that 100 percent of the sun's heat comes through.
The code calls for a U-factor of .4, meaning that only 40 percent of the heat's ... ,
sun's heat comes through. Does it cost a little bit more? Yes. Does it make
economic sense? Absolutely.
There's now a new generation of windows out .since this code was developed
called "Iow-e southern windows" which reflect back about 70 percent of the sun's
heat. The next generation of code may well specify that type of window.
There is almost no water heating section in the code. That's because when we
were getting it through-seven, eight years ago-we had specified solar and
heat pumps as water heaters. The gas company didn't like that. So we went
back and specified a high-efficiency gas heater-the electric company didn't like
that. So we jiggled back and forth, back and forth, and after we'd done this for
about ten or eleven months, Maurice Kaya, my boss, just threw up his hands and
said, the heck with it, let the utilities fight it out, because we knew they were
going to push for high-efficiency water heating anyway, as is indeed they have.
I know that Hawaiian Electric has rebates for solar and heat pumps. I, I believe
that Maui Electric has the same. So we have achieved the high-efficiency water
heaters without the benefit of the code .
... Again, payback. The average payback time of a code measure back in 1993
was about 2.8 years. That was based on about 11 cents a kilowatt hour. I think
we can agree that Maui pays a bit more than that now, so that your payback time
here is something less than 2.8 years-maybe 2.3 years, which represents,
perhaps, 45 percent return on investment. I think if a bank had a sign on its
window saying, 45 percent interest paid, that we would invest a lot of money in
that bank very, very quickly.
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Residential. Right now, officially, the other three counties have only commercial
buildings in the Model Energy Code. ... The Big Island has some residential
provisions, Oahu has some residential provisions, but not what we wantedreason for that is that it's not mandated by federal law and back then, the
developers and builders had strenuous objections to the code based on lowest
first cost. We pointed out that the big provision for residential insulation in the
roofs, would only add between a $1,000 - $1,500 to the total cost of a home
that's going to be well over $200,000 anyway. They objected.
Most of the new homes on Oahu are going up on Ewa Plains, the hottest, dryest
area of the island. The result of the homes not being insulated-and this is
reported to be my, my Hawaiian Electric colleagues-is that on hot summer
days, you can see families in the evening out in their driveways with a TV set on
the hood of their car eating dinner off of TV trays. Why? Their home is too hot to
inhabit in the evening. And these are young couples-they've scraped and
saved to make the down payment, they're working two jobs to meet the
mortgage. Their home is too hot, no insulation in the roofs because of a new ... ,
additional $1,000 or so.
That's the most important provision of the residential portion of the code and
we're very, very flexible as to how to achieve the R-19 that is called for in the
roofs. You can do a combination of a light-colored roof, which will reflect the
sun's heat, plus a radiant barrier. This is just an example ... (holding up
sample) ... of a radiant barrier. You put it along the rafters, it reflects the sun's
heat back out. The latest generation of radiant-barrier technology is this. This is
your roof decking here ... (holding up sample) ... and glued to the underside of it, is
a radiant barrier so that it becomes a one-step process. Imagine that this is your
4 x 8 piece of plywood and you're just laying it down with the radiant barrier
under there already. You eliminate another element of cost. The manufacturer
of this product claims that it would add only 15 cents per square foot to the cost
of a home-fifteen hundred square' foot home, 15 cents a square foot, that's not
very much at all. That... , this combined with a light-colored roof or very good
ventilation, would achieve R-19. So we're very, very, very flexible in that regard,
and we do strongly urge that the residential provisions be included.
We've worked very closely with the building, BIA, Building Industry Association,
and we think that they have come around now, and they see the benefits of code
provisions for new residences.
Finally, cost to the County. Virtually... , not virtually nothing, absolutely nothing.
We have trained all the County code officials throughout the State at least three
times, if not, four times, and that includes here on MauL The compliance method
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for this is that the designer of the building has a very simple sign-off sheet
saying, to the best of my knowledge these designs comply with the Model Energy
Code. He puts his stamp on it and signs it and that's it.
And speaking of compliance ... (pause) ... , one, there's two complicated sections
of the code: One is lighting and we have designed "Highlighf'-this is a
computer program for lighting. The lighting designer puts this in his computer,
enters all his figures, and at the end, the program will tell him if he passes or
fails. If he fails, then he goes back and says, now where can I reduce my
wattage a bit? And he plays with his design until he's achieved a "pass". Then
he can print out the results of this and hand it over to the building department
when he's applying for a permit-makes it very, very, very simple. This is used
not only in Hawaii, but the State of Oregon; Washington, D.C.; and other
municipalities. We've spread this program nationwide, and they like it very, very
much.
So, oh, we did a study two years ago on compliance in Honolulu and the Big
Island counties, and we found 87 percent rate of compliance even with this very,
very simple method that we have. I reported that at a national convention, and
that's a very, very high rate of compliance. And we discovered what was not
being complied with and we intend to tweak that and improve it a bit.
... Concerns raised may be that this is a small, inconsequential number or
savings. Indeed, it's not. Had this code been adopted in 1995-1 put some
numbers together-based on 11 cents a kilowatt hour, you would have saved
$3.5 million by now, would have saved 25 million kilowatt hours, 43 thousand
barrels of oil, and reduced energy demand by 1.7 megawatts. And, again, the
dollar savings would probably be considerably more than that. Oh, plus that's
based on-I'm counting just Maui as being 10 percent of the State total because
of your, uh, not phonetic, but high level of building activity, you're probably a lot
more than 10 percent of the State total during the year's 1995 to the present. So
that's a very conservative figure.
So that concludes my Model Energy Code 101 presentation. I have all kinds of...
literature that I can certainly leave with you. One of them is Roof Insulation for
Your Home and it spells out the different options that we have for insulating
roofs. We're much, we're more flexible than any other State in the nation-we're
proud of that. Florida is thinking of emulating us. And I'll be glad to provide
anybody with any and all copies that, that they need.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, mister...
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MR. WIIG: So, thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Wiig. Any questions from the Council members?
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, are you going to allow Mr. Kobayashi to
give his, his ... (inaudible) ....
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kobayashi indicated that he didn't wish to make a presentation,
but we ... , he will accept questions.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, maybe you can ask Mr. Wiig to have a
seat since he's the only person, and he can be a little ...
CHAIR CARROLL: You can get a seat up here, at the ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ... more comfortable.
CHAIR CARROLL: .. .this chair over here.
MR. WIIG: Which one?
CHAIR CARROLL: Right over here .... (pause) ... Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Wiig.
Thank you for coming to MauL..
MR. WIIG: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ... and giving us your point of view of this document.
You know, our, our Council over the last two and a half years has been very
active with energy. We had a request for a new power plant site, we've had
subcommittees created to address alternative and re ... , renewables. Uh, in my,
opinion, this proposal, uh, is, is couple years late. I don't think it really makes an
impact on our marketplace. I think our people in this County have been very
responsible in how we look at energy. ... It is in my opinion that this code stifles
innovation, and I would ask you if you could kind of give us some thoughts, your
thoughts, on why WOUld, if not, encourage optimum levels of efficiency instead of
just asking for minimal levels in your standards?
MR. WIIG: Okay. I, I think this is a multi-part question. Let me see if I can answer all
the provisions here. Number one, stifling creativity. There are three paths that
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you can follow in this code: Number one, is the "Prescriptive Path". And that
says, thou shalt have R-19 in the rules, thou shalt have R-11 in the walls, and so
forth, and you just follow the numbers and you comply that way.
The second path is what's called the "Performance Path", where if you want
flexibility, let's say in your lighting system-just for instance, if you want to have a
brilliantly lit lobby in your building and you want to have a lot of lighting there, you
can overload that section of the lighting provision, but then make up for it in other
sections of the building. You can have a lower lighting level, say, in the hallways,
the meeting rooms, and so forth, and it all balances out in the end so that you
achieve the building's efficiency.
The third path is what's called the "Whole Building Approach", and this would
allow you to build a building shaped like Mickey Mouse lit with pink Christmas
lights if you wanted. Because what you do is you say-just for instance, I'm
building a 50 ,ODD-foot office building, and if I complied with the prescriptive
portion of the code, it would consume x-number of kilowatt hours per year. And
you do that just with your design parameters. And you say, now, I'm going to
build this totally innovative building, and by my calculations, the total
consumption will be "x", whatever the "x" was for the, uh, prescriptive standard,
minus something ... (inaudible) ... a little more efficient than the prescriptive type.
And you can do anything you want as long as you can convince the building
inspector that you can ... , consuming less electricity.
And I should say that if the building people or the architects or engineers need
any help, I'm there first and foremost. If I can't answer a question, I go to Eley
Associates, our code consultant, to answer questions,and they've been very,
very, very helpful. So that's the flexibility angle. We do have, we don't stifle
creativity at all. And I've worked with architects and engineers for six years
who've complied with the code now. I've had no complaints along those lines.
The other issue that you address is optimal, uh, performance. We could go
above this; however, then you get into this payback time issue. If we did optimal
design, the cost-say of a lighting system-would be considerably more, the
savings wouldn't be all that much more. Therefore, your payback time would go
up from say 2.5 years to 3.5, 4.5. The most objections that we had when we
were first putting the code through was from the private sector citing this payback
time issue. So we're very, very, very strenuous in achieving as quick a payback
time as possible. There's nothing preventing people from being more innovative.
Indeed, we do have, we've developed energy efficiency guidelines for
commercial buildings. Now, they're considerably above the code and people are
very free to follow that, and we're just finishing off energy efficiency guidelines for
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residences also that, again, are considerably above the code. And we worked
with Hawaiian Electric to reward people for going above the code with rebates.
So I hope that answers your question.
.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I appreciate your, your response to that. ... You know,
one thing that I, uh, going, reviewing the proposal, uh, because I view this-we're
trying to address a problem which is symptoms of, uh, and I guess, the term will
be "dysfunctional marketplace". Why isn't the code addressing the main root
problems instead of the symptoms?
MR. WIIG: The root problem being ... ?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
The root problem being, why aren't the new
technologies that are cost effective need to be mandated?
MR. WIIG: Two, two reasons. Um ... again, the off-the-shelf items are now have come
way, way down. And one, one issue that you're addressing here is market
transformation. And just to give an example of how the code so far have
transformed the market, they pretty well dictate that for your standard office
spaces, the lighting system shall be electronic ballasts and T-8 lamps. Those are
much more efficient than the old-fashioned fluorescents. And that has been so
effective that for the commercial sector now, the building people I talk to say
there's just no such thing as an old-fashioned T-12 lamp. It's just gone outmarket transformation has been achieved.
'
There are new technologies that we're looking at. For instance, there now are
T-5 lamps, which are even more efficient and ballasts that are more efficient.
They are not what we call off-the-shelf items yet. You can't just pick up the
phone and have them delivered to you within five days from Los Angeles.
They're a little bit ahead of the curve. We are very, very conscientious about,
thinking about the designers and the contractors. We want to make life as simple
as possible for them. So we haven't gone up to the, uh, the cutting edge of the
curve. That said, let me say that Honolulu will be very shortly looking at
improvements to its code, and that we have formed a Model Energy Code Task
Force, which will be looking statewide at yet more improvements of technologies
specific to what are called hot/humid climates like ours, and it'll make those
buildings much more efficient. But, they're not quite off the shelf yet.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh. So, Mr. Wiig ...
MR. WIIG: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ...this task force you just brought up, uh, and you
mentioned our, our colleagues from the City and County of Honolulu.
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is the County of Maui involved and included in this task
force?
MR. WIIG: Uh, yes, it is. I, I've been in contact with Mr. Ralph Nagamine about that.
He's appointed a member.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Why wouldn't be Mr. Kobayashi, our energy, uh,
specialist, who, who, uh, works with us every day?
MR. WIIG: That was brought up by the original code people. We need people who are
on the front lines of enforcement and design. So, it's a combination. There's one
person from the building division of each county and then a whole variety of
private-sector engineers and architects. So these, these are the people who are
on the frontline of enforcement and, and design.
MR. WIIG: Yeah, but the problem is not the front line, the problem is getting the
consumer to choose the new technologies which creates the efficiencies .
... (chuckle) ... I can't-Mr. Kobayashi, I want to hear what you think.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kobayashi.
MR. KOBAYASHI: .. .I'm not sure what to think because I haven't heard about this task
force until now. ... 1 can appreciate the need to develop codes that are, that are
enforceable. So, I understand where Mr. Wiig is coming from. I wonder if
... (pause) ... all perspectives can be looked at by having just the enforcement side
present.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Because you know, that over the last two plus
years that I've worked on energy, as the Chair of the former Economic
Development Committee and the Subcommittee on Energy, uh, that it is my
intention that this Council, this, during this term, look at a County energy policy
that fits and works for this County, and then ask for the appropriate legislation
that will implement our policy. I don't think this energy code addresses where the
County of Maui wants to go in the year 2001. Would you, would you say that I'm
totally off the base in my three years or two plus years of work on this is, uh,
misguided?
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MR. KOBAYASHI: Uh, no, I would not say that. In fact, I think it's the way to go
because of the nature of the industry is transforming itself from a
regulatory-based industry to a more market-based industry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You believe that mandated efficiency codes like this
proposal is the right way to go? Or should be, should it be a choice of last resort
for this County to look at? I would hope we would maintain the maximum choice
of the consumer and not force the consumer as much as possible.
MR. KOBAYASHI: I have no comments.
MR. WIIG: If, if I could respond to that. What you're referring to, Mr. Councilman, is
what are called the voluntary guidelines. And each year I attend a National
Energy Code Conference, and a piece of news that comes out of that year after
year, is that voluntary guidelines are complied with at the rate of between 5 and 7
percent. And we have, and that's, that's not what we're after, we're after
widespread compliance. And again, we have developed guidelines for the
commercial buildings and we're in the process of just finishing up the residential
buildings. And we, we would be thrilled if developers and builders would specify
beyond what the code is. We've just found by years and years of hard work that
they, they want the minimum. If we specify too much beyond that, they're going
to oppose legislation like this.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, since you mentioned the, the federal law,
Mr. Wiig, have all 50 states adopted a mo .. , Model Energy Code?
MR. WIIG: Not all. There's a few holdouts-North Dakota, I think, Alabama, Idaho,
states like that. ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Would you have knowledge of why they also haven't
adopted a energy code?
MR. WIIG: These tend to be what are called, urn, county, county-based-type states,
where the counties are fiercely independent and don't want the states telling
them what to do.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I think you just described the County of Maui.
... (Iaughter) ... You know" there's a bill in the Legislature, House Bill 63 ...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ... that would mandate the counties to adopt Residential
Law, Provisions of the Energy Code.
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Why wouldn't you, uh, uh, support allowing each county
to adopt its own that fits its particular needs?
MR. WIIG: That, that would be fine.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you do not support House Bill 63?
MR. WIIG: Uh, we do. As long as the county ... (pause) ... meets minimum standards,
and the minimum standard that we have for res ... , the residential section, is R-19
in the roof-R-19 or equivalent. That "or equivalent" is very, very important.
There's a-just to give an example with, of the California electricity crisis that
we're having now-they put together an emergency task force to anticipate
what's going to happen this summer when the summer heat comes into the
San Joaquin Valley and the hot southern California climate. The most effective
measure they are proposing is to coat each roof white to reflect the sun's heat
back up. And one provision that our code allows, is a light-colored roof plus
whatever else is needed to achieve R-19, which isn't a whole lot. The
light-colored roof alone does most of the work.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sure you have many more questions, but maybe we should give
the other Council members a chance, too.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: By all means, Mr. Chairman. I'm willing to let all the
members ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Yeah.
Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
Question for
Mr. Kobayashi. .. .1 guess cutting through things is-which, which can the citizens
of Maui County benefit from more-this Hawaii Energy Code or a code that Maui
County could come up with, in, in your opinion?
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MR. KOBAYASHI: ... (pause)... Uh, that's an interesting question. ...(chuckle and
pause)... I guess I'm not convinced codes are the only alternatives. ...And your
question deals only with codes. I would like to think the citizens can benefit more
by us responding to their concerns and coming up with a customized approach.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. KOBAYASHI: If that answers your question ... (chuckle) ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. When you say a "customized approach"
meaning, uh, the County itself, I guess, adhering to the responses of the citizens,
the consumers and sort of moda ... , making a modified code, I guess?
MR. KOBAYASHI: I, I guess. That's what I've been attempting to do for the past years.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. KOBAYASHI: Started off with looking at what modifications would be appropriate
and that path led me to look at all their con ... , alternatives. So in answering your
question, I think, uh, yes, I would hope that we could do better if given the
opportunity.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you so much, Mr. Wiig, for coming. I really appreciate
it. ... Being basically a resident of another area before I moved to Maui, the U.S.
Virgin Islands, I can appreciate what you're talking about because every roof in
the Virgin Islands was cal ... , coated with the material that was reflective-we had
Hypalon roofs and so they were all white. And, generally, the construction was
very thick-wall concrete construction so there was, at least from a cultural
standpoint, a history of energy conservation. So when I came here, and we live
in a second floor unit, no inSUlation-you could probably cook an egg, you know,
on our roof very easily-so, I can appreciate what you're saying. Having said
that, however, just my, it's my nature to be highly suspicious of regulation,
because the average consumer and, and just even myself as a citizen, when I
look at how much is regulated in our lives, to put another layer of regulation is
probably the most troublesome thing when I look at any kind of code mandating
efficiency. And mandates always-my gut feeling is, ooh, you know-what's
wrong with this picture.
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So from my standpoint, I'm looking at this maybe with a little, it's, it's almost a
conflicted position ...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ... because I realize everything that you're saying I agree with
a 100 percent because it is where we want to go. I wish that there had been a
model energy code or compulsion for the people that bart ... , built our
condominium to put insulation in the roofing area so that it would not be so hot
and so awful and cause us to pay these huge air conditioning bills. We don't
even use our air conditioning now so we, we just tolerate the incredible heat. So
from that standpoint, I am a 100 percent behind this.
The, the little, you know, other side of me or that "little voice" inside me that's
saying, but, oh, but, oh, my gosh, it's another layer of regulation. That is also
what concerns me just as a consumer that it's difficult many times to do these
mandates. Do you see any possibility within the code as opposed to saying it,
it-and it is very specific, at least from the building standards, it's very, very
structured-clo you see any possibility that we could include within it more
incentive-based program or incentive-based document as opposed to being
punitive? ... (chuckle) ... You know, or, I guess, I wouldn't even say punitive, but,
you know where you're forced to do these kinds of things, whether you want to or
not. Do you see any way that we might be able to integrate that within this
document?
MR. WIIG: Okay. Are you referring and asking that question to both commercial and
residential buildings or just to residential?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I, I would say, probably, to, to both.
MR. WIIG: Okay. ... I'm, let's take commercial buildings first. ...Number one, the, the
designers that I deal with-architects, engineers-once they got used to the
code, have had no problem with it...
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. WIIG: ... whatsoever, and we are in line with almost all of the nation. I deal with,
uh, mainland architects and engineers, and all I have to say is certain words and
they say, oh, okay, and, and they've got it. So, it's not really a burden on them at
all.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
- 16-
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MR. WIIG: They're completely used to it. And the cost premium is very, very little
above that of inefficient equipment. .. .If you were to do an incentive-based
program, incentive generally translates into money, and then the next question
becomes who is going to supply the money? And the answer in this case, is the
utilities where, again, we've worked very closely with Hawaiian Electric Company
where if the designer of a commercial building say, will go above the Model
Energy Code provisions, they will rebate him x-amount per watts saved. Ditto
with the AC systems, ditto with Envelope Provisions. And we work closely with
them to add on more and more rebates from them. So, we have established a,
an incentive program already.
... The same holds true for the residential portion or, as you're probably aware,
the utilities strongly are pushing the solar systems. The State already gives a
re ... , an incentive of a 35 percent tax credit, and then Hawaiian Electric puts a
rebate on top of that, and we give an incentive of 20 percent for, uh, heat pump
water heating. And, we're working to expand those rebates more and more with
the utilities. What they're looking at very closely now is a rebate for R-19 in
residential roofs.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. WIIG: But, urn, I have to get back to this lowest first cost business. We have been
beaten about the head and shoulders with that lowest first cost issue for years
and years and years, and the developers are very, very insensitive to the needs
of the consumer as, as is the case with your own personal situation.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and I think you've answered my question in as much as
this is always going to be problematic because people, many times, will not do
the right thing to benefit the consumer. And being that fact that we represent
consumers, I, I take two different views-we're representing development
interest and economic development but, on the other hand, it's also the quality of
our lives. And so for me, I would have to say on the surface that sometimes it
requires things such as this to compel people to do the right things. And ... the
things that I'm looking at, at least from what I've read, from what I've learned is
that, uh, we do have to be concerned, particularly, as temperatures rise-if
there's such a phenomenon, and I know some people will dispute it-of global
warming and this type of thing.
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: As our temperatures rise, particularly, the elderly, young,
young children, they will have other health problems related to this. So, on a
long-term basis, I think it's a point that we could begin at. I think that we may be
able to, if we do see problems somewhere along the way, to move towards
correction. If it's not a perfect document, I think that we could at some point
improve upon. If it, if it does prove to be something that's really detrimental,
which I don't, I don't really see that, you know, within the, the framework of the
document, I think we could probably address those things.
But, on the surface, I would agree with you that weighing both sides-the
regulatory aspects of it and then also weighing the need to really have something
in place that does protect the consumer, at least from safety, at least from health
standpoint and comfort, and having a better quality of life-that's, that's pretty
much what I would be looking at. And I'm also an environmentalist, so,
conserving energy is one of the things that I also believe in. So, I, even though I
see a conflict within myself-I'm sure other people would agree that nothing is
ever perfect but-I, I would be willing to support the adoption of the Model
Energy Code and, and looking down the road to where we could improve it and
customize it to suit the needs of Maui's people. Thank you.
MR. WIIG: Again, we have absolutely no pro ... , no objections to going beyond the code
at, at all. That is just the minimum, very cost-effective minimum. Looking at it
from the economic development side, again, the estimate I came up with,
absolutely minimal was that had the code been adopted in 1995, uh, Maui
County would be $34 million richer today, and that, that's a conservative figure.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you .... (tape change) ... Mr. Kawano.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'd just like to say, I like
your presentation ...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: ... and thank you for it. And I'm glad this is on Akaku,
and I want to thank the Chairman, Bob Carroll, for bringing it up.
There's two things I, I have question on. You talk about the task force.
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: That, uh, is that task force in existing, or are you folks
going to create it or what?
MR. WIIG: We're, we're in the process of creating it now. We sent out the letters of
invitation about two weeks ago, and Mr. Nagamine was one of the people who
responded so far.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: And you said that, uh, uh, Honolulu and Kauai was the
only two county that went along with this, or did they accept this?
MR. WIIG: Uh? Accept the ... , the, the code?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Yeah.
MR. WIIG: Oh, no. All three other counties have, have accepted.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Maui's the only one that's never...
MR. WIIG: Yeah. Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: ... and I can say-and what is the reason for Maui being
so slow?
MR. WIIG: Um, well, Mr. Hokama ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: You had any response on that?
MR. WIIG: ... 1 can only say that, um, when we passed a, an initial energy code back in
1978-that was, again, mandated by the Federal Government in response to the
energy crisis. The other counties adopted this old-fashioned code in 1979, and
Maui finally came along in 1983. So there seems to be kind of a, a tradition there
that ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Or Maui is just more careful? ... (Iaughter) ...
MR. WIIG: Um, that's one way of describing it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you. And, uh, as far as the task force, how
many, how many from each county you going to have? One representative?
MR. WIIG: One representative from each county building division. Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: I see.
MR. WIIG: And then the utilities will be represented and the private sector will be
represented also.
MR. WIIG: And you're not sure when that, when, when this task force will be created?
MR. WIIG: We're looking ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Or you just working on it now ...
MR. WIIG: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: ... although the other counties has adopted this?
MR. WIIG: Well, the, again, the building code has been in place for six years in the
other counties.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Uh-huh.
MR. WIIG: This, the purpose of this task force is to move beyond the existing energy
code because there's been a lot of technological improvements since we
developed the original code, and we want to incorporate those improvements in it
now. And we're looking at having the first task force meeting on March, possibly
March 19th , March 21 S t, something like that. So it will be in force in, in a short
time.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: I see. And, as Mr. Hokama mentioned, Bill 63, do you
see any flawed in that bill that the State have a problem with?
MR. WIIG: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: No?
MR. WIIG: No, it, uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: So you, so you folks do support it?
MR. WIIG: Yes, we, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you. And thank you, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I'm not so convinced like my other colleagues
about this bill, this proposed ordinance. You know, I only heard the one side of
the picture. So, Mr. Wiig, tell me, in your opinion, what is the unintended
consequences to the County of Maui with, with this bill?
MR. WIIG: Unintended consequences? I have worked very closely with each of the
other counties and there have been no unintended consequences. At first there
was a little bit of a shakeout period where I got a lot of phone calls with
questions-how do I comply with this, how do I comply with that? And after a
few months, that, that settled down and it's just a way of life now.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. WIIG: And that applies both to the, at the County level, the enforcers and the
architects and engineers.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. WIIG: It's an easy, easy code to comply with was another reason for having it just
be minimal. Noth .. , nothing exotic there.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
You would agree, Mr. Kobayashi-there's no
unintended consequences to this County? I'm expecting you to respond to what
is the best interest of the County, not the State of Hawaii.
MR. KOBAYASHI: Perhaps, I could answer it by explaining the process that I went
through in working with the community. ... And that's what, anyway let, let mewhen this first code was introduced, we had public hearings on the matter, and it
was brought to -my attention by architects that we needed to take a look at it
because, uh, it would create, uh, I guess you could call it unintended
consequences.
One architect pointed out that, you know, he tries to do natural ventilation
systems, and to get an exemption from the code, he would have to demonstrate
that it works through computer modeling or wind-tunnel testing. And he said,
because of that, uh, it would be easier to comply with the code by putting in a
mechanical system. He indicated that's what he thought architects would do as
standard practice, and he questioned if we were truly accomplishing our goals.
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As a result of that, we pulled together a task force in Maui County consisting of
engineers and architects on MauL We looked at this issue for months and could
not come up with a revision to the code that would address that concern. And as
a result, I started investigating non-code al..., code alternatives to address this
issue.
Another person brought up the fact that technologies are changing and there's a
need to look at, or to revise the code to address new technologies. And as
Mr. Wiig indicated, there is a new task force being developed to look at the new
technologies to address that concern. Um ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, you think this code on this newer technologies, in
your opinion, for this County, uh, should be market-driven or mandated?
MR. KOBAYASHI: ... (pause) ... Well, uh, you know, the State's position is that there's a
lot of benefits with the mandate, so ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I really don't ... (chuckle) ... care what the State's
position is. I need to know what is the best, from you-I consider you re ... , a
representative of this County, this County Government, not the State of Hawaii,
the State Government or business and economic development. What is good for
our people here?
MR. KOBAYASHI: Well, uh, I don't know how to answer that. Uh, maybe I should
clarify-I represent the State. I'm the ex ... , extension office for the State and I'm
funded by them. So, uh, you know, I, I need to respectthe role I play.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you're not going to give me a straight answer then,
is what you're telling me?
MR. KOBAYASHI: Well, Ie ... , let me do my best to answer your question. Uh ... , it's in
our best interest to encourage energy efficiency to the best that we can.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I always ...
MR. KOBAYASHI: And I'm all in favor of that. ... (chuckle) ... Trust me. Uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, obviously then, we need to make you one County
employee so you can ... (chuckle) ... tell the County what is good for us, which I
will be pursuing since I'm not too thrilled with what I'm hearing right now.
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So Mr. Wiig, since, you know, Bill 63 is before the Legislature, I, I'm assuming
that the other counties of this State have not embraced the residential side of this
code. Can you share with us why?
MR. WIIG: Yes. We, uh, tried to implement it back in the 1994, '95 timeframe, and the
various county councils had no problem with the commercial sector, especially
since it was federally mandated, and there were no objections from either the
county people, architects, engineers, so forth. So, that passed very, very easily.
The residential portion is not federally mandated, and we had a lot of architects
and other professionals testifying in favor of the code. However, the developers
and the builders cited lowest first cost and they carried the day with the various
county councils. That was the one issue-lowest first cost-and we talked about
the fact that the result would be so called "hot boxes" and that didn't make an
impression on either the developers or the councils at the time. But again, we've
worked very, very closely with the BIA, Building Industry Association, and we will
be looking at this in Honolulu in the near future. We think that they have seen
the reasonableness of at least R-19 in the roofs, especially with the
improvements in technology that I was just illustrating-very, very, very
inexpensive to achieve R-19.
And just to address an earlier issue-ventilation. If venti..., natural ventilation
can be shown to achieve say-plus a light-colored roof and ventilation-if that
can achieve R-19, we're happy with that also. Totally flexible on that issue.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: How effective, in your opinion, is this proposal in terms
of energy savings capacity for this County?
MR. WIIG: It won't make a huge impact, it will make a significant impact as I ran off the
numbers, or is it, so far we're ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is that your, that 34 million, is that your estimate or that
is, is that a number from Maui Electric or. .. ?
MR. WIIG: That's an estimate from the Impact Analysis. I neglected to hold that up. I
have copy of that here where part of Eley Associates mandate was to devise this
Impact Analysis, both energy and economic and ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We have, we, we have that, Mr. Wiig.
MR. WIIG: Yeah, okay. So, what we did back in late 1999, was have the conSUltants
revisit that issue and ask themselves the question, were those original estimates
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accurate? And the answer was, yes, indeed. They, they came in within, I think,
it was less than 5 percent deviance.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. That figure, you sure, that 34 million? Does that
take into account customers that are already utilizing the utility's incentives and,
and government's credits programs?
MR. WIIG: No, it doesn't. It, it assumes a, a baseline. And, and I might point out that
we have worked very closely with the utilities to create those incentives, and the
State tax credit we fought very, very hard for with stiff... over, over stiff opposition
some years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. WIIG: So we're totally in, in back of those.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You have an estimate of how many Maui County
residents or customers make use of this?
MR. WIIG: In terms of solar, residential solar-water heating, the statewide figure is
about 75,000 households having solar units on them. Just an arbitrary figure if
you say-Maui has 10 percent of the population, there would be approximately
seven and a half thousand solar units on roofs now. I don't know if Maui Electric
has more accurate figures than that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
That's too, some sophisticated answer for me.
Enforcement of the code. Is the State willing to provide the counties with funds?
MR. WIIG: We have found that the counties haven't needed any funds. We provided
them with training and also with a very, very simple enforcement mechanism.
Mr. Nagamine, of the Land Use and Codes here, has indicated he has no
problem with that, and the other counties have had no problem whatsoever.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Then you just hit the point of the head, Mr. Wiig. If
training to our, our enforcement and codes people, why wouldn't we do that kind
of training to the whole community, the residential cust..., and commercial
customers and create this as a guideline inst..., then, instead of a mandate?
MR. WIIG: If we could train thousands and thousands of residential customers, we
certainly would. That's one reason we created this brochure, and we have
distributed this mostly through roofing people. Roofing people use this as a
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marketing tool to encourage insulation in their homes. It's not as easy to train
tens of thousands of people as it is to train a handful of building code officials.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But if we're going to get to where we'd like to ...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
... in the future, you need to have the whole
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
communities buying, and not just a few Land Use and Code personnel.
MR. WIIG: That would be the ideal.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that's why ... (chuckle) ... I think, you know, we're
kinda misguided in looking at the symptom and not the root problem, which I
think this code is more centered on.
MR. WIIG: Are, are you indicating then, the ideal would be to have a very, very
sophisticated consumer base who would demand energy-efficient homes from
their, their builders?
MR. WIIG: I don't underestimate what our residents can and cannot comprehend,
Mr. Wiig. I think if we brought it forward to them in a straight manner of what
their savings would be ...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ... that they can comprehend what is their initial outlay
versus their net benefit.
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I think our residents can make wise choices.
MR. WIIG: That I'm in total agreement with that. And we've done that on a small basis.
Again, it's difficult to reach tens and tens of thousands of people to the extent
that we have been able to educate consumers. They have jumped at this. It's
not just a matter of economic sense, it's a matter of comfort also. Most of us
grew up in homes that were naturally ventilated and that's the way we want to
keep it. That's one of the purposes of the code is to keep homes naturally
ventilated and keep people very comfortable in those homes. I'm in total
agreement that a well-educated populace is the ideal.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are you finished, Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: At this time, Chairman.
!

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank tou. Mr. Molina.
I
!

I

COUNCILMEMBER MOLl~A: Yes. I, I have a question for Mr. Wiig. You mentioned
that the, the Oahu land Kauai counties, there was some concerns, I guess,
expressed more so from the residential ...
I

MR. WIIG: That's correct.

!
I

I

COUNCILMEMBER MOLl~A:
types of concerns? i

... populace.

Can you cite some of those examples,

I

MR. WIIG: Uh, we had hJarings and, before the various county councils and, again,
architects, consume~s, environmental groups would testify in favor of this. The
only opposition we ~ot was from the builders and developers. And they, they
I
carried the day.
I

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Umm. No resident, no, no people from the residential, I
guess, community ~xpressed concerns with the code, it's just as you cited,
builders?
.
MR. WIIG: Yeah. Yeah. I pan give a specific example from Kauai County. We brought
over Charles Eley i himself, who's the President of Eley Associates, our
consultant, and he's! respected worldwide. The Government of Australia hired
him, the Governmerh of Hong Kong hired him to develop their energy codes.
He's very, very big i~ ASHRAE, which is the national engineering firm, one of the
top, top members off that firm, of that organization. We brought him in, uh, the
... (inaudible) ... I'm very happy to see a full contingent here. We had at the Maui
[Kaua/] Council, the !Chair of the Committee and one member. The Chair left
after about ten minutes, and the one lady listened politely to our presentation,
and then asked on¢ question-is this going to raise the cost of residential
homes? And we said, yes, and she said, thank you very much, and invited us
out to the Tip Top C~fe for lunch and dismissed us. And that was the sum, total
of the Kauai Council's residential response.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, I, I, wondered within this and have in our condominium
where we are currently, we have on standard, I guess, it would be your
covenants or governing documents that basically say that our roofs are a
common element.
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
MR. WIIG: And, therefore, there is no provision, at least that I have been able to see at
any level, where we are actually going to have an opportunity as homeowners to
have that solar water heater on top of our roofs because it is not mandated. I
would love to, but I'm basically prohibited ...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ... as an individual without having to sign away my first born
child ... (chuckle) ...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ... you know, and, and take the full responsibility that if there's
any damage or leakage in the roof...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ... that we could put that on. Now, is there within this
provision any kind of a mandate that when they are putting in this kind of
construction-particularly in condominiums and particularly on the second floor
units, or, or higher levels-is there a provision that basically would, would at least
permit that to happen without interfering with covenants and bylaws and all the
restrictive things that we have in condominium documents?
MR. WIIG: Yes. There is a law addressing that specific issue that says all horizontal
condominium covenants, bylaws, et cetera, not withstanding solar unit shall be
permitted on condominium units.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. Well ...
MR. WIIG: And, I'll be glad to supply you with a copy of that law.... (inaudible) ...
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I think we have that law but in, in practical respects, our
condominium will allow us to do that, but we have to basically agree that when
we're going to do that, we have to assume certain liabilities.
MR. WIIG: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: That's the problem that I, I have. So, what I'm asking you is
that on new construction, perhaps, not old, but when new construction comes in,
is there a compelling portion of the document that really says, look, you, you
factor it in, you put it in as part of the, you know, the energy code. I, I would ...
MR. WIIG: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ... really, just from the standpoint of being a consumer, and
not having to do things after the fact where it is a part of original construction ...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ... it is, the integrity generally tends to be better when it is part
of original construction.
MR. WIIG: Absolutely. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ... 1, myself, would like to see that in because as a practical
matter now, it's really not attractive to any homeowner or condominium owner to
want to go in and assume that liability ...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ... you know, for that common element or damage to it. So,
that's one, one area that I would like to, to also address.
The, the other thing that Maui County-I don't know if this sheds any light, it's
more philosophical thing than any thing else-we have trouble even separating
paper, plastic, cans ... (chuckle) ... and ...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ... you know, trash items. So, I think that it's human nature
just simply to be reluctant or to be willing to be retrained. And it's more a
question, I think, of habit and ...
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MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ... and what we're used to doing and the reluctance to
change. I think that's just simply human nature. So we're always reluctant...
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: ...just as a society to anything that's new that, well, if it's that
good for us, why are you forcing that to do a, you know, why are you forcing us to
do this?
'
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Just like your mom would say, castor oil is really good for
you.
MR. WIIG: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So, I think that's part of our problem, and I don't see us as
any different than any other part of society, That's all I have to say. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Did you have something, Mr. Hokama, uh, Kawano?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Well, the one thing, I guess, and Mr. Chairman, he's a
good salesman. ... (Iaughter)... You know, because, I think we had a lot of
people come from the state, and we can see right off the bat that, and I sort of
buy his product, except they uncomfortable in, in my part is, on our
representative in, in Kal. Look like Kal is sort of sitting on the fence this morning,
and I don't like that because I know Kal is a guy who can really-like a motor
mouth-and somehow it looks like he's tied down. And I, and being that he
represent the County and the State, sometime you get in that problem. It's
almost like Corp. Counsel serving us and the Maui Mayor. But I just, that, that's
the uncomfortable part, I feel as far as this go. And, uh, as I said, I think you did
a good job, except, and I like what you presented, but, uh, I don't know, I just, I
just feel uncomfortable with this, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anyone else have anything at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One question for Mr. Wiig, please.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Wiig, how would your model energy proposal fit
within the United States Department of Energy's strategic plan for distributive
energy resources?
MR. WIIG: Distributive energy resource, is that referring to localized co-generation
units?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Anything with energy efficiency and renewables.
MR. WIIG: Okay. I, I think that's a multiple-part question. Number one, again, this, the
commercial section is mandated by the U.S. Department of Energy. So that
certainly fits in. You've raised the issue of going beyond the code. U.S.
Department of Energy has an Energy Star Program and that encourages
residences and commercial buildings to go beyond the code and, we at the State
level, are very much part of the Energy Star Program. And one thing we've
done, is worked with the banking and financial communities to recognize that
even though a residence may cost a little bit more when it has energy efficiency
provisions in it, no ... , notably for Hawaii's solar, that the inhabitants of those
homes are going to be paying lower utility bills. Therefore, they're going to be
better able to pay their mortgages. And the difference in utility bills can be over
half, if you are an energy-efficient home. Urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
house, right?

And that's provided first you can afford to buy the

MR. WIIG: Precisely. And we, that's what the issue we've addressed. Just for, as an
instance-lets say that home is priced at $225,000 and the additional energy
efficiency provisions bump the price of the home up to $230,000, another
$5,000-under the Energy Star Program, the bank will either give a mortgage
credit or will not consider that extra $5,000 in the mortgage. Therefore, you have
a, a set rate of...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. WIIG: ... of payment. Again, the banks know that because you're going to have a
lower utility bill, you're going to be better able to pay the mortgage. So we've
been very, very active in working on that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. WIIG: ... And there's also a Green Lights Program, is part of that federal initiative.
Hawaii was the eighth state in the nation to enroll as a Green Lights partner. And
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we've encouraged, especially the State buildings to adopt voluntarily very, very
high-efficiency lighting, and we've been successful in that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: This County has done its part to, to doing its own
energy review and, we've made our own voluntarily, without mandates, the
adjustments to our utility requirements also.
Kal, you understand the County good. You know what's happening with Maui
Electric on Lanai and Molokai, the whole part of this island. How effective have
our residents been, work and commercial customers, have been in, uh, reducing
energy requirements without mandates?
MR. KOBAYASHI: Um ... I'll, I'll go a little out of bounds by speaking for Maui Electric,
and we have a representative here that can correct me. I think, from what I've
gathered from talking to them, that they've been very effective in transforming the
lighting market. When I asked them exactly how much of a market penetration
impact they've had that has not been quantified, but the gut feeling was that
they're hitting almost all new construction, and that they're very successful. And
as a result, uh, uh, because of their success, it's highly likely that we are already
maintaining a high compliance with the code as it is. Most of the code savings
that have been identified relates to the lighting, and because we already have a
very successful lighting program, I think, you know, because of Maui Electric,
we're, we're going really good in this County. If there's some numbers-I hate to
put you on a spot-but please, correct me if I'm wrong, or add to that if I'm not.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Umm. Mr. Chairman, can we get that request to Maui
Electric because one of my concerns now that, since I've-and I'm real happy to
hear that ... (chuckle)... Maui Electric and our community has responded
voluntarily, then, and we can verify this, Mr. Chairman-then to me is why would
we want to pass legislation that basically has no basic impact on the marketplace
when our people are basically attempting and doing what the code is going to be
mandating to do? And I would hate to be a part of a legislative body that adds
bureaucracy when our community is already ... (chuckle) ... embracing the intent
of the legislation. So why would we pass legislation, again, that has no impact
on the community?
MR. KOBAYASHI: And may... , maybe I should make it clear. Maui Electric's rebate
programs awards people when they go over and beyond the code. So, I believe,
with Maui Electric's success, that not only are people already meeting the code,
but they're already going over and beyond the code-and that just deals with
lighting. They also have programs for motors and other equipment. In fact, they
have a generic category where a customer can say, this is what I've done and
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show the savings and they get a rebate. And, uh, maybe they can argue against
me, but I think they've been very successful.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will draft that letter to Maui Electric, and sh ... , uh, to get
your question answered and ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I just need to, you know, I think if we can verify
that information, Mr. Chairman, it shows where our community is as far as how
we've been looking at energy and, and the requirements. You know, this
community has, has known that this Council and the previous Councils have
discussed energy quite detailed because of our Waena Power Plant request that
was approved by the last Council. And ... (chuckle) ... I am for one, very happy to
get that kind of response from Mr. Kobayashi that we've, in places, exceeded the
proposed code legislation. So, I think, if we can get it verifiep, that, that would
seal it for me not to support this, this proposal.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
CHAIR CARROLL: ... you wish the Chair to inquire Maui Electric and get that answer for
you, then?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: If there's no objections by the other members, I think to
have it verified would be very helpful.
CHAIR CARROLL: Note that I will write the letter and we will get it verified. And even if
it does pass out of here, we will have that information wherever this is heardwhether it's in this meeting or the whole Council. Commissioner Jo ... , uh,
Councilmember Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: That's okay.
Commission. ... (Iaughter) ...

I know.

Too many years of the Planning

I just, I was unaware that We had someone here, and I don't know if they're
prepared to speak, but I would be very curious to see if from Maui Electric
where-is the person prepared to state what their position is in terms of
supporting this or not? I'm, I'm just curious more than anything. If they're not,
that's fine, but I just would like to know where they stand on this also.
CHAIR CARROLL: I can only say in a conversation with Bill Bonnet, he said he had no
problems with this.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So, so they, Maui Electric, does support this?
CHAIR CARROLL: He indicated that he ...
VICE-CHAIH JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: ... had no problems with supporting the energy code.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. The other thing, too, that the Star, the Energy Star
Program that was spoken about. I learned about that also from Mr. Bonnet, and
that is something that, I think, from the residential standpoint where there's an
argument used about, well, it's going to increase the cost of your home. I think
from my understanding of it, it actually would be able to spread out over, you
know, like, let's say-the initial improvements where you're putting in
energy-efficient lighting, you're putting in, perhaps, solar, you're putting in other
technological advancements that would be part of an energy-efficient home-that
those can actually be spread out over the life of the mortgage as opposed to you
paying for those things, like more improvements are up front. So I thought that
was very good and, I, Mr. Bonnet was kind enough to say that he would be
willing to give our Council more information on that and make it available,
perhaps, in our lobbies so that the consumer can actually be made aware of the
programs that already exist, which, I think, are very good, and can help actually
move us in the direction of energy efficiency. So I thank you for bringing that up.
Appreciate it. That's all.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anyone else have anything at this time?
MR. WIIG: Mr. Chair, just one last comment about the bureaucracy adding another
layer, uh, certainly we, that's not our intention. The code people on the neighbor
islands, or on the other islands, um, have, once they adjusted to this, it's, it's just,
um, a habit of theirs. There's, there's not another layer of bureaucracy. We did
not add any more people and they're able to handle the load very easily.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. All right. We've had this for awhile. This is kind ... , the
subcommittee was formed in the last, uh, Council, and they did a lot of work and
they, and they should be commended on the time they spent with Mr. Hokama,
who chaired that and we deeply appreciate that. And we've come to this pointthere are still questions.
However, as Chair, I'm ready to make a
recommendation unless anybody has anything further to say.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Mi. ..
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kawano.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Mr. Chairman, can we have a five-minutes recess?
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Can we have a recess?
CHAIR CARROLL: Five-minute recess .... (gavel) ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you.

RECESS: 10:20 a.m.
RECONVENE: 10:31 a.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel)... The Human Services and Economic Development
Committee is now back in session. Members, do you have anything to say
before I give my recommendation?
All right. Before I give my, my recommendation-I sat in on the last meeting of
the subcommittee that Mr. Hokama chaired last year, their last meeting is the,
they closed out, and I've followed this closely since then-not as closely as I did
until I became Chair of this Committee. I read through everything over here for
the sixth time this morning, and I think I have as good a understanding of it as I
could possibly have at this time. My recommendation is to pass this pro ... ,
proposed bill on first reading and file County Communication number 99-296.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: You want that in a form of a motion? Is that in a form of a
motion? So moved.
CHAIR CARROLL: Do we have a second? ... (pause) ... No second? Your pleasure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Move to file.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh,wait, wait, just a second there, Mr. Chair. I, I, you
know, I appreciate what, what, what you're, you are, are, uh, had proposed. I
think what, what we might want to look at, Mr. Chairman, is that, uh, you know, to
be fair, because I am not sold on this document that is years too late and, again,
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I am very proud of our community that voluntarily we have exceeded some of the
benchmarks of the proposal.
I think we really need to look at the State law and see where we can propose
revisions that would promote the marketplace to voluntarily continue to be more
energy efficient, to embrace the long-term savings that, not only provides the
resident, but people like this County. We have just gone through a Budget
Committee meeting yesterday, oh, excuse me, two days ago, members, that, you
know, we are again faced with high utility costs also. And that we, as a County,
basically-I figure 10 percent in my estimation to Maui Electric of the total
revenues-ways that we could maybe continue to advocate and promote and
embrace the high-technology changes that occur rapidly. I think that is a better
suggestion and I would hope that-that would be, that would be my, my
recommendation, Mr. Chairman-that we 1) file this item; 2) that the Committee
with the staff explore revisions to the current State law to make it more
appropriate to the current times and where we can through Mr. Kobayashi's
support; and my third recommendation is that we fund Mr. Kobayashi's position
and send that recommendation to the Budget Committee that he be a full County
employee paid by County funds so that he can give the County of Maui the best
recommendation for what is the best for Maui County.
CHAIR CARROLL: It's a very long motion .... (laughter) ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, it might be. If you want it in multiple motions, so
be it, Mr. Chairman, but...
CHAIR CARROLL: That, uh, I have ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: ... that is just my recommendations to you, sir.
CHAIR CARROLL: I have no problem with that. Is that your motion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That is my motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Do we have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: And I'll second it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Second by Mr. Kawano. Discussion? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, just a, just a comment. Maui County, first of
all, is very unique. This is the only County in the State in which you're talking
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ha ... , about having three islands. And, as was mentioned earlier, Maui County
tends to be a little, maybe, behind the decisions made by Oahu County and
Kauai County and the Big Island but, uh, Mr. Kawano alluded to that-that can
be interpreted as we're a very careful County. And we, we really, we have some
dif..., maybe we have some different dynamics in this County, I'm not sure, but,
but I, I do believe that Maui County has shown a history of looking at things from
a different angle when it comes to a lot of issues. And I, I, uh, am a firm believer
that sometimes too much government may not be productive. And as was stated
earlier by Mr. Kobayashi how Maui Electric and the community has gone out
there to exceed the code, the energy code and the regulations, which is very
admirable on the citizens and organizations in this County. So, that is why I, I did
not initially support the first motion. And that's what I have, that's my
commentary on this.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I, I, too, share Mr. Hokama's support for Mr. Kobayashi
actually being an employee of the County and using, perhaps, some of the
elements of the document. I'm, I'm troubled by the fact that it's a 1993
document. I think that's one of the things that gives me the biggest concern is
we're already behind the curve. There is a task force already being formed and
in listening to some of the debate, I, being conflictive as I am anyway, my gut
tells me, yes, we need something, but I am not sure if this is the document.
I, I support the motion that was originally made by you on the basis that I would
like input by other Council members, in as much as this is not the full Council,
and to also receive some kind of public testimony and some kind of guidance
from our constituents as to where they want us to go with this. I've read some of
the testimony, I've heard some of it, been familiar and generally from what I have
been able to gather, there are many segments of the County and our
constituents that really do support the Model Energy Code even if it, if it is behind
the curve and it's not, perhaps, the current document. But, I would agree with
Mr. Hokama in the view that, perhaps, Maui County is very unique-we're, we're
very protectionist about ourisland, and the State has not always served the best
interest of the counties. That, I think, we have seen firsthand. Therefore, I would
be in support of the motion with the ultimate goal to go beyond the scope of this
code using, perhaps, elements of it as a framework but to be specifically tailored
to the times that exists now, to the technology, and with a vision and a plan to the
future. So it's on that basis that I will support Mr. Hokama's motion.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further... , Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, you know, I appreciate the comments of the
other members. ...One thing I think is very, uh, uh, important for this County and
I believe, you know, the members have stated in various ways, including
yourself, Chairman, and that I would hope that, as the Chairman, you would work
with, with our Committee staff as well as Mr. Kobayashi. And I do believe that we
have, the Administration has a working document for a Maui County Energy
Policy Proposal. I'm, I'm not too sure exactly where it is in the processing, but I
believe that would be a very important step forward for this County, and I would
be very supportive of, of having it brought forward for the maximum amount of
public comment and that that policy statement can then help guide the Council in
putting in the implementing or, uh, ordinances in place to achieve those goals
from that perspective, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further comments? If not, all in favor.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I just want to hear the motion restated .... (inaudible) ...
,

CHAI R CARROLL: You want to hear the motion restated?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes, sir. Please, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Who wrote down the motion?
MS. ALUETA: Okay. The motion, I believe, was to: 1) file the County Communication;
2) to have staff and Corp. Council and the County Energy Coordinator work on
revisions to the Sate law or, I'm, I'm assuming and/or continuing to work on the,
the developing of the energy policy for the Council's future consideration; and 3)
that a letter be read ... , written to the Budget Committee requesting that
Mr. Kobayashi's position be converted to County as opposed to State.
CHAIR CARROLL: ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Any further questions?
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. All those in favor?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried .... (gavel) ...
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama,
Johnson and Chair Carroll.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

Kawano,

Molina, Vice-Chair

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FILING of Communication No. 99-296; that
Committee staff, Corporation Counsel and Energy
Coordinator meet to create the Maui County energy policy
for future Council consideration; and that the Budget
Committee consider converting the Energy Coordinator
position from State to County.

CHAIR CARROLL: And I assure you that this Committee will also continue to work in
the future to get a energy code for Maui County-and we do have the best
County and we're very proud of it for this reason. I'm sure that we will come up
with something that will be exemplary throughout the State.
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Is there any announcements? Anybody have anything to bring up? If not, this meetir
is adjourned .... (gavel) ...

ADJOURN: 10:40 a.m.

APPROVED BY:

nk-a~

Robert Carroll, Chair
Human

Services and Economic
Development Committee
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